From: SM-Defra-Plan Cons Area Team (Sussex and Kent) (NE)
<PlanConsAreaTeamSussexandKent@defra.gov.uk>

Sent: 24 March 2025 08:16
To: Planning
Subject: FW: 2025-04-08 506935 - HRA & AA & Neutrality Statement - Construction of

dwelling & detached garage/store building - The Hermitage, Tower Hill, Horsham
(Horsham) DC/25/0115

Attachments: ufm3_Water_Neutrality_consult.pdf; Appropriate Assessment.docx; Water Neutrality
Statement.pdf; Annex A to standard letters - PDF.PDF

Categories: Consultations

Dear Planning at Horsham,
Thank you for consulting with Natural England regarding the following consultation

The proposed development fall within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone; As set out in Natural England's Advice
Note regarding Water Neutrality within the Sussex North Water Supply Zone, the existing water supply in the Sussex
North Water Supply Zone cannot be ruled out as contributing to the declines in wildlife within internationally
protected sites in the Arun Valley SPA, SAC and Ramsar site. Achieving water neutrality is recognised as a suitable
method to rule out potential adverse effects on the integrity of these sites arising from development.

Considering the supporting information provided by the applicant and your authority’s Habitats Regulation
Assessment (HRA) our advice is as follows.

Our ref LPA ref Planning Consultation | Natural England’s advice
and Location
506935 DC/25/0115 | Planning We concur with the conclusion of your authority’s HRA appropriate assessment
Consultation: HRA & insofar that adverse effects on the integrity of the Arun Valley Designated sites
. can be ruled out, as such:
Approprlate We have no objections subject to the: delivery, management and maintenance

Assessment & Water of measures identified in the water neutrality statement to achieve water
Neutrality Statement - | neutrality.

Construction of
dwelling & detached
garage/store building.
Creation of new
vehicle access from
Parthings Lane
Location. The
Hermitage, Tower Hill,
Horsham RH13 0JS

Further general advice on the protected species and other natural environment issues is provided in the attached
Annex A.

If you have any queries relating to this advice please let us know.
Yours sincerely,

Connor M. Bush



From: planning@horsham.gov.uk <planning@horsham.gov.uk>

Sent: 18 March 2025 12:01

To: SM-NE-Consultations (NE) <consultations@naturalengland.org.uk>
Subject: Planning Application Water Neutrality Consultation - DC/25/0115

Please see the attached consultation letter regarding Water Neutrality from Horsham District Council
Re:DC/25/0115

The Council will only accept service of documents by email if they are sent to legal@horsham.gov.uk during our
office opening hours. Any documents sent to individual email addresses will not in any circumstances be accepted.
Communications received outside our office opening hours will be regarded as being served on the next working
day

Please contact us in advance if your email, including any attachments, is going to exceed 30MB.

Disclaimer

IMPORTANT NOTICE This e-mail might contain privileged and/or confidential information. If you have received this e-mail in
error, please notify the sender and delete the e-mail immediately; you may not use or pass it to anyone else. Whilst every care
has been taken to check this outgoing e-mail for viruses, it is your responsibility to carry out checks upon receipt. Horsham
District Council does not accept liability for any damage caused. E-mail transmission cannot guarantee to be secure or error
free. This e-mail does not create any legal relations, contractual or otherwise. Any views or opinions expressed are personal to
the author and do not necessarily represent those of Horsham District Council. This Council does not accept liability for any
unauthorised/unlawful statement made by an employee. Information in this e mail may be subject to public disclosure in
accordance with the law. Horsham District Council cannot guarantee that it will not provide this e mail to a third party. The
Council reserves the right to monitor e-mails in accordance with the law. If this e-mail message or any attachments are
incomplete or unreadable, please telephone 01403 215100 or e-mail customer.services@horsham.gov.uk. Any reference to "e-
mail" in this disclaimer includes any attachments.

This email has been scanned for viruses and malware, and may have been automatically archived by Mimecast Ltd.

This message has been sent using TLS 1.2 Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
(Defra) This email and any attachments is intended for the named recipient only. If you have received
itin error you have no authority to use, disclose, store or copy any of its contents and you should
destroy it and inform the sender. Whilst this email and associated attachments will have been
checked for known viruses whilst within Defra systems we can accept no responsibility once it has
left our systems. Communications on Defra's computer systems may be monitored and/or recorded
to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes.



Annex A — Additional advice
Natural England offers the following additional advice:

Landscape

Paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) highlights the need to protect and
enhance valued landscapes through the planning system. This application may present opportunities to
protect and enhance locally valued landscapes, including any local landscape designations. You may want
to consider whether any local landscape features or characteristics (such as ponds, woodland, or dry-stone
walls) could be incorporated into the development to respond to and enhance local landscape character
and distinctiveness, in line with any local landscape character assessments. Where the impacts of
development are likely to be significant, a Landscape & Visual Impact Assessment should be provided with
the proposal to inform decision making. We refer you to the Landscape Institute Guidelines for Landscape
and Visual Impact Assessment for further guidance.

Best and most versatile agricultural land and soils

Local planning authorities are responsible for ensuring that they have sufficient detailed agricultural land
classification (ALC) information to apply NPPF policies (Paragraphs 174 and 175). This is the case
regardless of whether the proposed development is sufficiently large to consult Natural England. Further
information is contained in GOV.UK guidance Agricultural Land Classification information is available on
the Magic website on the Data.Gov.uk website. If you consider the proposal has significant implications for
further loss of ‘best and most versatile’ agricultural land, we would be pleased to discuss the matter further.

Guidance on soil protection is available in the Defra Construction Code of Practice for the Sustainable Use
of Soils on Construction Sites, and we recommend its use in the design and construction of development,
including any planning conditions. For mineral working and landfilling separate guidance on soil protection
for site restoration and aftercare is available on Gov.uk website. Detailed guidance on soil handling for
mineral sites is contained in the Institute of Quarrying Good Practice Guide for Handling Soils in Mineral

Workings.

Should the development proceed, we advise that the developer uses an appropriately experienced soil
specialist to advise on, and supervise soil handling, including identifying when soils are dry enough to be
handled and how to make the best use of soils on site.

Protected Species

Natural England has produced standing advice! to help planning authorities understand the impact of
particular developments on protected species. We advise you to refer to this advice. Natural England will
only provide bespoke advice on protected species where they form part of a Site of Special Scientific
Interest or in exceptional circumstances.

Local sites and priority habitats and species

You should consider the impacts of the proposed development on any local wildlife or geodiversity sites, in
line with paragraphs 175 and179 of the NPPF and any relevant development plan policy. There may also
be opportunities to enhance local sites and improve their connectivity. Natural England does not hold locally
specific information on local sites and recommends further information is obtained from appropriate bodies
such as the local records centre, wildlife trust, geoconservation groups or recording societies.

Priority habitats and Species are of particular importance for nature conservation and are included in the
England Biodiversity List published under section 41 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act 2006. Most priority habitats will be mapped either as Sites of Special Scientific Interest, on the Magic
website or as Local Wildlife Sites. List of priority habitats and species can be found on Gov.uk.

Natural England does not routinely hold species data, such data should be collected when impacts on
priority habitats or species are considered likely. Consideration should also be given to the potential
environmental value of brownfield sites, often found in urban areas and former industrial land, further
information including links to the open mosaic habitats inventory can be found here.

L https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
https://www.landscapeinstitute.org/technical/glvia3-panel/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/agricultural-land-assess-proposals-for-development/guide-to-assessing-development-proposals-on-agricultural-land
http://magic.defra.gov.uk/
https://data.gov.uk/data/search?q=Agricultural+Land+Classification
http://www.defra.gov.uk/publications/files/pb13298-code-of-practice-090910.pdf
http://www.defra.gov.uk/publications/files/pb13298-code-of-practice-090910.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/reclaim-minerals-extraction-and-landfill-sites-to-agriculture
https://www.quarrying.org/soils-guidance
https://www.quarrying.org/soils-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/habitats-and-species-of-principal-importance-in-england
https://www.buglife.org.uk/brownfield-hub
https://www.gov.uk/protected-species-and-sites-how-to-review-planning-proposals

Annex A — Additional advice

Ancient woodland, ancient and veteran trees

You should consider any impacts on ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees in line with paragraph
180 of the NPPF. Natural England maintains the Ancient Woodland Inventory which can help identify
ancient woodland. Natural England and the Forestry Commission have produced standing advice for
planning authorities in relation to ancient woodland and ancient and veteran trees. It should be taken into
account by planning authorities when determining relevant planning applications. Natural England will only
provide bespoke advice on ancient woodland, ancient and veteran trees where they form part of a Site of
Special Scientific Interest or in exceptional circumstances.

Environmental gains

Development should provide net gains for biodiversity in line with the NPPF paragraphs 174(d), 179 and
180. Development also provides opportunities to secure wider environmental gains, as outlined in the
NPPF (paragraphs 8, 73, 104, 120,174, 175 and 180). We advise you to follow the mitigation hierarchy as
set out in paragraph 180 of the NPPF and firstly consider what existing environmental features on and
around the site can be retained or enhanced or what new features could be incorporated into the
development proposal. Where onsite measures are not possible, you should consider off site measures.
Opportunities for enhancement might include:

Restoring a neglected hedgerow.

Creating a new pond as an attractive feature on the site.

Planting trees characteristic to the local area to make a positive contribution to the local landscape.
Using native plants in landscaping schemes for better nectar and seed sources for bees and birds.
Incorporating swift boxes or bat boxes into the design of new buildings.

Designing lighting to encourage wildlife.

Adding a green roof to new buildings.

Natural England’s Biodiversity Metric 4.0 may be used to calculate biodiversity losses and gains for
terrestrial and intertidal habitats and can be used to inform any development project. For small
development sites the Small Sites Metric may be used. This is a simplified version of Biodiversity Metric
4.0 and is designed for use where certain criteria are met.

Natural England’s Environmental Benefits from Nature tool may be used to identify opportunities to
enhance wider benefits from nature and to avoid and minimise any negative impacts. It is designed to work
alongside Biodiversity Metric 4.0 and is available as a beta test version.

Green Infrastructure

Natural England’s Green Infrastructure Framework provides evidence-based advice and tools on how to
design, deliver and manage green infrastructure (Gl) . Gl should create and maintain green liveable places
that enable people to experience and connect with nature, and that offer everyone, wherever they live,
access to good quality parks, greenspaces, recreational, walking and cycling routes that are inclusive, safe,
welcoming, well-managed and accessible for all. Gl provision should enhance ecological networks, support
ecosystems services and connect as a living network at local, regional and national scales.

Development should be designed to meet the 15 Green Infrastructure Principles. The Green Infrastructure
Standards can be used to inform the quality, quantity and type of green infrastructure to be provided. Major
development should have a Gl plan including a long-term delivery and management plan. Relevant
aspects of local authority green infrastructure strategies should be delivered where appropriate.

Gl mapping resources are available here and here. These can be used to help assess deficiencies in
greenspace provision and identify priority locations for new Gl provision.

Access and Recreation

Natural England encourages any proposal to incorporate measures to help improve people’s access to the
natural environment. Measures such as reinstating existing footpaths together with the creation of new
footpaths and bridleways should be considered. Links to urban fringe areas should also be explored to
strengthen access networks, reduce fragmentation, and promote wider green infrastructure.


http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/map?category=552039
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/ancient-woodland-and-veteran-trees-protection-surveys-licences
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/6049804846366720
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/6047259574927360
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/6049804846366720
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/6049804846366720
http://nepubprod.appspot.com/publication/6414097026646016
http://publications.naturalengland.org.uk/publication/6049804846366720
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/GreenInfrastructure/Home.aspx
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/GreenInfrastructure/Principles/HowPrinciples.aspx
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/GreenInfrastructure/Map.aspx
https://designatedsites.naturalengland.org.uk/GreenInfrastructure/MappingAnalysis.aspx
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Rights of Way, Access land, Coastal access and National Trails

Paragraphs 100 and 174 of the NPPF highlight the important of public rights of way and access.
Development should consider potential impacts on access land, common land, rights of way and coastal
access routes in the vicinity of the development. Consideration should also be given to the potential
impacts on the any nearby National Trails. The National Trails website www.nationaltrail.co.uk provides
information including contact details for the National Trail Officer. Appropriate mitigation measures should
be incorporated for any adverse impacts.

Biodiversity duty

Your authority has a duty to have regard to conserving biodiversity as part of your decision making.
Conserving biodiversity can also include restoration or enhancement to a population or habitat. Further
information is available_here.


http://www.nationaltrail.co.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/16/section/40
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/biodiversity-duty-public-authority-duty-to-have-regard-to-conserving-biodiversity

